






October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 9

CITY OF ELKO
REDEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
4:00 P.M., P.D.S.T., THURSDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2019

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Jon Karr, Chairman of the City of Elko Redevelopment
Advisory Council (RAC), at 4:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Catherine Wines, ACAB
Jeff Dalling,
Jon Karr
Lina Blohm
Bill Hance, RDA (arrived at 4:18 p.m.)

Excused: Corey Rice, Elko Co.
Katie Neddenriep, ECVA
Sonja Sibert, GBC
Steve Bowers, Elko Co. School Dist.

City Staff: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

April 25, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

May 21, 2019 – Special Joint Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***A Motion was made by Catherine Wines, Seconded by Jeff Dalling to approve both the
minutes as presented.

*Motion passed (3 - 0, Lina Blohm Abstained).



October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 9

I. PRESENTATION

A. Presentation of NV Energy Underground Management Plan to be implemented January 1,
2020 and how it relates to Redevelopment, and matters related thereto.
INFORMATIONAL ONLY

Josh Carson, Distribution Design Supervisor for NV Energy, mentioned that he was
accompanied by Will Morgan, who is over streets and highways. Mr. Carson explained that he
met with Mr. Thibault and Ms. Laughlin previously regarding this program. He explained that
the Underground Management Plan was something new that has been recently established
between NV Energy and the Public Utility Commission. The packet (Exhibit A) that has been
provided establishes the criteria and the eligibility for the Underground Management Plan. What
the program does is address the distribution undergrounding requests between the local
jurisdiction and NV Energy. Mr. Carson gave an example of the project he discussed with Ms.
Laughlin and Mr. Thibault that pertains to an alleyway off of Silver Street and between 4th and
5th Streets. There is an active project that is being looked at, and this plan could help provide
some assistance for the project. The reason the plan was put together was because local
governments have a direct interest in undergrounding facilities, which was the reason Ms.
Laughlin approached NV Energy to look at this specific project. She wanted to know what kind
of opportunities were available and if there was any cost sharing availability and participation.
At the time Ms. Laughlin approached them, there wasn’t anything available. This plan has since
come into play. The City has current requirements for undergrounding utilities for any new
infrastructure. From a utilities perspective, NV Energy supports undergrounding, because it
produces a higher degree of reliability and reduces maintenance costs on their end. Mr. Carson
then asked for any questions on the initial eligibility and criteria.

Chairman Jon Karr asked what size the standard lines are that are running downtown.

Mr. Carson said they typically run a 24-9 system in the incorporated city areas. The City would
be eligible for the most part. Where this might come into play is some of the more rural areas,
which might not meet some of the eligibility requirements.

Catherine Wines asked if the program would only be eligible in areas where construction is
going on.

Mr. Carson said one aspect they were still seeking guidance from the PUC on was what defines a
Redevelopment Area. He said the simple answer was yes, it typically is an area of redevelopment
where they will be conducting construction.

Ms. Wines asked if it was available to built out areas, like some of the alleys in the downtown.

Mr. Carson said where it comes into play most is when you are undertaking a new construction
project; where you want to incorporate the lines, or are upgrading the lines, and want to
participate in undergrounding that structure.



October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 9

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained that it would be similar to when Steve Romero
undergrounded the utilities behind his development on Idaho Street. It would also be similar to
the project that Mr. Carson referred to, the Stockmen’s parking lot. Staff met with NV Energy
and asked what they could do and what it would cost to underground the line from Capriola’s to
Stockmen’s. It would help with the ingress and egress out of the parking lot into the alley area.
The layout of the poles was determining ingress/egress in the alley. Staff said the poles are
compromising the design and a variety of other things. At the time, for Redevelopment to take
that on as whole would be extensive. It would be similar to what was done on 7th Street. Staff
dropped it at that point, and then Mr. Carson called to discuss the new program. Staff was
excited, because now it would be more feasible with some cost sharing. The project would
qualify for this program because it’s a new construction of the entire parking lot area and
reconstruction of the alley.

Jeff Dalling asked who would be sharing the cost, and if it would be the Redevelopment Agency.

Mr. Carson said they would get into cost sharing later.

Ms. Wines had another question on where the program would be available. She asked about the
corner lot where the Stumble Inn used to be. She asked if someone were to construct there, if it
would be eligible for the whole alley.

Mr. Carson said yes. It would be eligible for any of the criteria listed on Page 2 of the packet,
and within the Redevelopment Area.

Ms. Wines asked if they wouldn’t just do it for the site where the project was located, but for the
whole block.

Mr. Carson pointed out that it would be project and cost dependent. There are a lot of attributes
that effect how they utilize the Plan in cooperation with the Redevelopment Agency.

Ms. Laughlin said Point No. 2 the physical conflict with the approved Redevelopment Plan was
the key point. It is listed in the Redevelopment Plan to eliminate blight and to underground
utilities.

Mr. Carson thought it would be widely usable within the downtown area, or the Redevelopment
Area. He then went on to “The Plan” slide. There are currently 27 entities splitting $5 Million
over three years, which comes out to approximately $1.67 Million per year. If there is less than
one hundred percent participation amongst those 27 entities, then the funding could be
reallocated to another project. One thing they don’t know, at this point, is what the breakdown is
going to be. As of today, they don’t have any applicants, but that is subject to change by the
December 15th cutoff date. Once all the applications are received the funding will be allocated
appropriately.

Lina Blohm asked if December 15th was the deadline for applications for one cycle of funding.
(Correct) She asked if they had a project being planned, such as the parking lot, if it would be too
soon to apply. (No) Ms. Blohm then asked if they had applied yet.



October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 9

Ms. Laughlin explained that they have not applied, because this was the first she had heard of the
deadline. When they met there wasn’t a deadline at that time yet. NV Energy is still in the
process of working through all of the details for the program. They stated that they were going to
reach back out to the City and let us know if there is an application, what the deadline is, and any
other information we will need.

Ms. Wines asked if the application would be project specific.

Mr. Carson said it would be project specific.

Ms. Wines asked if the deadline for the next three years was December 15th.

Ms. Laughlin explained that there would be funding available every year for 3 years.

Mr. Carson said that the funding was over a three year period, so the $5 Million would be spread
out over a three year period. It is allocated amongst the 27 entities. The total amount of funding
won’t be determined until all the applications are received. They don’t really know the extent of
the actual funding that will be usable until a later date. They are still working through a lot of
details, because this was just recently passed by Public Utility Commission. The December
deadline is a deadline that is going to make this applicable and usable by NV Energy, so they can
have a hard and fast date to stop applications. As they get more information and as this Plan and
process moves along, they will be disseminating the information through Ms. Laughlin.

Ms. Wines asked if there was a project that came up next year, if it would be available for
funding.

Will Morgan explained that it is a three year plan period. They have to go back to the PUC every
3 years to justify getting the $5 Million. Each year is treated on its own. December 15th isn’t a
hard line, but they do have to draw a line in the sand, so they can figure out where the funding
stands. For the 2021 cycle, the deadline would most likely be in October or September of 2020.
If you don’t apply by December for 2020 you won’t be missing out for the whole three year
period.

Mr. Carson said one thing to keep in mind, which came up in the project that Ms. Laughlin was
discussing, is the Plan does not cover the cost to redistribute the services. Another thing to think
about is the Joint Pole Agreements. There is not just power infrastructure to think about, there is
also Joint Pole Agreements with phone and internet that would also have to be discussed and
looked at for some poles too.

Mr. Morgan said another thing with JPA applications that the PUC was pretty strict on, was that
they don’t want to spend a bunch of money undergrounding the power lines when AT&T and
Charter are allowed to stay on poles. The stipulation that they made was that there needs to be an
agreement in place with whatever communication companies that might be sharing pole space;
that within 12 months of NV Energy’s project they will relocate their facilities under ground as
well.



October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 9

Ms. Laughlin pointed out on the Seventh Street project that they had communications on those
poles. The City worked closely with the other entities and got all of it underground at the same
time, and the City paid for that cost.

Ms. Blohm asked if the first in the shoot had a better chance at getting their particular request, or
if NV Energy would be waiting for all of the 27 entities to bring something forward. She asked
how they saw that process working.

Mr. Carson said they didn’t have an answer yet to how that process was going to work this being
the first year. He thought once all the applications came in, it would determine the allocation.
Depending on the number of entities, it might not be as much as you are anticipating to cover the
funding. It is something to consider. They thought they would have a determination of total
funding approved by early spring.

Mr. Morgan said they should have the initial calculation of line miles, which will determine the
pro-rata share of the basis budget, by the end of next week. All of the entities will be receiving a
letter with the preliminary dollar amount that they are eligible for per plan year. One of the items
they need to work through with the PUCN is if they only get Elko Redevelopment wanting to do
one project, do they reallocate the total $1.67 Million for that year, or does it roll to the second
plan year. There is quite a bit that they are still trying to get answered by PUC staff. They geared
this more towards Vegas, but they wanted to make sure that there was rural inclusion. In
Northern Nevada redevelopment has a different meaning than it does on the Vegas Strip. They
are also trying to outline a definition that fully applies to Northern Nevada, not just demolishing
a hotel/casino on the Vegas Strip and rebuilding condos.

Bill Hance arrived.

Mr. Dalling asked what the cost was going to be for the power lines to be undergrounded at the
dirt lot.

Ms. Laughlin said they received a ball park estimate from NV Energy. It was around $50,000 for
their portion. Staff ran some quick numbers and they figured it would be around $200,000 to
$250,000 for the total project. Redevelopment paid $200,000 for 7th Street, and it will be similar.
That was depending on if we go underground at 5th Street, on the Capriola’s side and bored
under NDOT right-of-way, or if we go underground at the corner. It could be a good savings if
we don’t mess with 5th Street.

Mr. Dalling said they were looking at a cost of $200,000, which would not be coming from the
City.

Ms. Laughlin said it would be paid by the Redevelopment Agency.

Mr. Dalling asked how much the parking lot was going to cost Redevelopment.



October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 9

Ms. Laughlin explained that the Redevelopment Agency approved $99,999 to Stockmen’s for the
parking lot construction. We have Shared Use Agreement with them that it be public.

Mr. Dalling asked if they now wanted to put another $200,000 from Redevelopment into the
parking lot.

Ms. Wines said it would only be $100,000 if NV Energy paid for half of it.

Ms. Laughlin explained that this program wasn’t part of the conversation when staff met with
them about undergrounding those power lines. They met way before this program was
developed. They figured a grand total cost of $200,000, if they kept it on the west side of 5th

Street. At that time staff decided that it probably wouldn’t be worth it. Now if it is a $200,000
project and it is only costing Redevelopment $100,000, and we would be cleaning up that whole
alley and all of that power line, because NV Energy is covering that cost; then it might be worth
it. That is why this program is in front of the Advisory Council today, to get them thinking about
it.

Mr. Carson explained that the specific project would be subject to change based on actuals at the
time. Once the project moves forward, if Ms. Laughlin makes application, then they will be able
to give a more solid answer on what the 50/50 cost sharing really looks like. Mr. Carson pointed
out that the 15% variance, listed on Page 4, was removed from the Plan.

Ms. Wines thought it sounded like a great project. Power lines are blight. To have the great
downtown that they are all hoping to have, the power lines need to be moved. It is expensive, but
she thought it was awesome that NV Energy wanted to pay for half. She recommended making
application just in case.

Chairman Karr said he appreciated presentation. He asked Mr. Carson to fill them in on the
corridor lighting.

Mr. Carson said that Ms. Laughlin approached NV Energy quite some time ago in regards to
making some assistance with changing out bulbs, specifically in the Stockmen’s area of the
corridor. NV Energy was looking at cost to assist with that project when they decided to revisit a
previous attempt, which had come up approximately two years ago, to convey the lights directly
to the City of Elko. They went through a series of approvals and estimated costs of the
infrastructure. At that time, the depreciated value of the infrastructure came back at an amount
that was higher than the City was willing to pay. After some time had gone by, and Ms. Laughlin
re-approached them to assist with changing that area to LED, they decided to re-approach the
conveyance of the lights to the City, because Ms. Laughlin expressed that it was something the
Redevelopment desired to look at again. NV Energy is under some new management and has
been going through the conveyance approval process for the better part of a year now. They are
hoping that it is coming to the final stages, where they are either going to get final approval or a
full denial. They have had to go through a key decision report to their Senior Vice President,
which includes values and all the justification leading to why they would want to convey their
assets to the City. They don’t know if it is going to be at a zero cost, or what the cost will be at
this point. Mr. Carson explained that the way they presented it was at a zero cost. They are



October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 9

hoping that it will come through approval before the end of the year. One of the biggest hold ups
was that they went through a general rate case this year, and that is a poor time to adjust assets
within the company, so it was placed on hold for a period of three months. Now that that has
been completed, it has gone through that process and is in the review stages. They are hoping
that the remainder of the lights in the downtown corridor will be conveyed. There would be some
stipulations, the lights would have to be metered, and they have looked at the potential of three
specific locations for the meters. Mr. Carson thought it was a fair trade. As they gain more
information, or inch closer to approval, they will relay that information to the City.

Chairman Karr asked if it was denied, if they could still try to work together on changing the
bulbs.

Mr. Carson said that was something they could definitely look at doing. That is something that
they would coordinate with their operations group to assist the City, and they have already
provided the price quotes. He thought it was smart to approach conveyance first, because then
the City would have the freedom to change and maintain as they see fit. Mr. Carson said their
operating group had plans to give a presentation to the City, because they do have some general
plans of doing LED change outs throughout the City.

Ms. Wines asked if it would help to get some influence from the different Boards, or the Mayor.

Mr. Carson didn’t think it could hurt. It is already in the review process, but it’s not too late to
add a supplement such as that.

Ms. Wines asked where the decision came from.

Mr. Carson said it would come from the Senior Vice President, which is in Vegas.

Ms. Blohm asked, as the lights exist in the corridor, if there is a standard they should be meeting,
and if they are meeting that standard for illumination.

Mr. Carson explained that all of the existing lights that NV Energy owns and maintain meet their
current standard for the time they were installed, and as they get replaced they meet the current
standard.

Ms. Blohm said they continually get comments from the community that it is dark in the
corridor. They don’t feel safe going into the downtown corridor area in the evenings, because it
is not illuminated.

Mr. Carson thought the best way to assess that is these lights are reaching a point in time where
they are not current, to current lighting standards as if they were new. They met City Standard
and NV Energy Standard at the time they were installed.

Mr. Thibault had a question for Mr. Carson regarding the undergrounding agreement plan. He
asked if the cost sharing, assuming the funding was available, could be applied to both the



October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 9

trenching and conduit installation typically done by a contractor, as well as the work that NV
Energy usually does to provide the wire, pull the wire, and make the connections.

Mr. Carson said yes, but it would also be dependent on the amount of funding that is received.

II. REPORTS

A. Budget

Ms. Laughlin went over the budget report.

Mr. Dalling thought the train turned out good that Byrnes Painting did.

Ms. Laughlin mentioned that there was a presentation to Les Byrnes at the City Council
of a nice plaque with a picture of the train.

B. Storefront Improvement Program

Ms. Laughlin said there is $25,000 remaining in the 17/18 budget that was approved, but
has not been paid out due to a lack of proper invoicing. On the 18/19, Patray Assets are
done and 100% paid; the Commercial, we’ve been seeing some action, but have not seen
a reimbursement request from them; The Pat Laughlin Family Trust is 90% complete. In
the 19/20 Storefront Grant Program; Capriola’s was allowed to request half up front,
because their project was over $10,000, and they placed their order for all their signage.
They actually came in less than what they were allocated, because they got a discount for
paying up front. Jason Land’s project is in progress. She asked Ms. Wines to give a
report on her Storefront Project.

Ms. Wines stated that she didn’t have anything to report.

Ms. Laughlin said they will be starting up for the next cycle. She has had quite a few calls
lately in regards to the upcoming cycle. If we don’t see any applications coming in by
February we will have to do some sort of advertising.

C. Other

Ms. Blohm asked for an update on the Block Ends.

Ms. Laughlin explained that Mr. Thibault has been extremely busy with the Sports
Complex, so we haven’t gotten any further on the design work on the block ends. We are
hoping to be going out to bid for the project in early spring and starting construction this
summer.

Ms. Wines gave a brief report on the Mural Expo.



October 24, 2019 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 9

There was brief discussion regarding the Fire Sprinkler rate increase.
Comments/concerns were directed to the City Clerk.

There was further discussion regarding undergrounding the utilities at the proposed
Stockmen’s parking lot, the costs associated with that, the NV Energy undergrounding
utility plan, and the corridor lights.

John Ellison stated that he could give an estimate on getting new services to all the
business along the alley between Silver and Commercial and 4th & 5th Streets. He also
stated that he had a meeting with NV Energy in Vegas about the lights in the corridor,
and he was going to try to get Ms. Laughlin on a conference call.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Mr. Ellison wondered if there was something they could do to get NV Energy to brighten or fix
the street lights in front of the bowling alley and Dreez on Silver Street.

Bill Hance thought those were the City’s lights. He also thought they were done about 6 or 7
years ago. He said he would talk to Dennis Strickland about it. Mr. Hance passed out some
lighting information that has been included as Exhibit B.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Redevelopment Advisory Council reserves
the right to combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the
agenda, or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jon Karr, Chairman Lina Blohm, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A. 

City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action regarding the continuation of the 

Redevelopment Recognition Program, and matters related thereto.  FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: January 23, 2020 

 

3.  Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

      

4. Time Required: 5 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The RAC defined the details of the Recognition Program at 

their October 25, 2018 meeting. The RDA and RAC had a joint meeting May 21, 

2019 to recognize the 2019 recipients of the Recognition Program.  It was never 

determined if this program would be an annual or biennial program.  

  

6. Budget Information:  

Appropriation Required: N/A  

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name: Redevelopment Fund 

 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

     

8. Supplemental Agenda Information:  

 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the RAC 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, Redevelopment Manager/City Planner 

 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:  

 

12. Agency Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  



Agenda Item # I.B.  

City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration and possible action to elect officers, FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: January 23, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: RAC Bylaws Article III, Section 1 states: The RAC shall 

elect a chairperson, a vice-chairperson, and a secretary from its members in 

January of each year. There is no minimum or maximum on the number of times a 

member may serve in one of the elected offices. 

 

6. Budget Information: 

  Appropriation Required: N/A 

  Budget amount available: N/A 

  Fund name: N/A 

 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

   

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: By-laws  

 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Advisory Council 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

  
11. Committee/Other Agency Review:  

 

12. Agency Action:  

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  



Page 1 of 4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 14, 2017

City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council (RAC)
Bylaws

(First Amended and Restated)

ARTICLE I ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE; RECITALS

Section 1 The City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council (RAC) was established by the City of
Elko Redevelopment Agency (RDA) on December 11, 2012.

Section 2 Whereas, on or about February 12, 2013, the RDA adopted the first set of Bylaws for the
RAC; and

Whereas, the RDA has determined to amend and restate the Bylaws; and

Whereas the redevelopment and revitalization of the City’s downtown is an integral
component of the Redevelopment Plan; and

Whereas the RDA is committed to promoting the downtown area as a principal focal point
for Elko community life, and making it an attractive, safe and economically sound city
center with shopping, entertainment, cultural and recreational opportunities; and

Whereas the RDA recognizes and values community collaboration while maintaining the
distinctive character of Elko as a pioneering and enterprising city; and

Whereas the RDA wishes to seek advice from a diverse yet representative advisory
committee to advise it with respect to implementing the RDA Plan or any plans
subsequently adopted for the implementation of the RDA Plan, to propose Plan
amendments, to assist with marketing and economics as requested by the
Redevelopment Agency, to suggest projects and priorities for possible expenditures
during the budget process, to explore grants or other external funding sources, to
develop Design Guidelines for possible use by the Redevelopment Agency, and to advise
the Redevelopment Agency about ways to attract new business.

Based upon the foregoing recitals, the RDA hereby finds and directs that the RAC shall
be subject to the following bylaws commencing on the date of adoption by the RDA:

ARTICLE II MEMBERSHIP, APPOINTMENT TERMS

Section1 The RDA shall appoint five (5) members to the RAC board.  The RAC board members
shall satisfy the following criteria or have the following affiliations or associations, and
shall serve without compensation: (1) a member of the RDA, (2) the president or
designee of the Downtown Business Association, (3) the chairman or designee of the
Arts and Culture Advisory Board, (4) one member who resides within the City of Elko
incorporated boundary, and (5) one stakeholder from the redevelopment area. In the
event that one of these members is not able to maintain his or her position, the RDA may
select other representatives to serve. Membership shall also include four (4) ex-officio
nonvoting members, being representatives of the Elko County School District, Great
Basin College, Elko County, and the Elko Convention and Visitors Authority.

Section 2 The members of the RAC shall be appointed by the RDA annually in July; provided, in
the event of a vacancy, the RDA may appoint an interim member for a term up to and
including the next July 31.  There shall be no limit on the number of reappointments of
the members.

Section 3 Minimum Qualifications for appointment to the RAC include:



Page 2 of 4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 14, 2017

a. Interest in the City of Elko community.
b. Ability to work cooperatively with individuals, groups, community agencies and

organizations.
c. Willingness to meet and conduct business under the Nevada Open Meeting Law.

Section 4 Any RAC board member (excluding ex officio members) who accrues more than three (3)
consecutive unexcused absences, or fails to attend more than seventy-five percent (75%)
of the regularly scheduled meetings within a calendar year, shall be considered to have
resigned and that person’s membership shall thereupon automatically terminate. The
foregoing sentence shall not apply to excused absences. Excused absences are defined
as absences due to illness of a member or a person in a member’s family, employment-
related activities, or other instances as approved by the Chairperson on a case-by-case
basis.  Notification of absences is to be made to the Secretary of the RAC.

Section 5 Any board member may be removed or suspended by the RDA for good cause, as
determined by the RDA.

ARTICLE III OFFICES, DUTIES AND APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS

Section 1 There is no minimum or maximum on the number of times a member may serve in one of
the elected offices. In the event of a vacancy in an elected office, a special election may
be held at any time during the year to fill the vacancy.

Section 2 The offices and duties of the officers shall be as follows:

a. Chairperson: To preside over meetings of the RAC and to ensure that actions are
properly taken, to sign official documents and correspondence on behalf of the
RAC, to assist City Staff in preparing agendas, and to represent the RAC at City
Council and RDA meetings, and other official functions.

b. Vice-Chairperson: To assume the duties of the Chairperson in the absence of the
Chairperson, and to assist with publicity efforts as needed.

c. Secretary: To sign or attest official documents of the RAC, to keep minutes of the
meetings, and to review any record-keeping functions of the RAC.

ARTICLE IV RESPONSIBILITIES, POWERS, AND DUTIES

Section 1 The responsibilities, powers and duties of the RAC shall include, but not-be-limited to, the
following:

a. Hold meetings in accordance with the Open Meeting Law (Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS) Chapter 241) to promote the exchange of information and
otherwise fulfill the purposes stated in these Bylaws.

b. Obtain public input.
c. Assist in the development of Design Guidelines and any restrictions or controls

upon the request of and subject to the approval by the Elko Redevelopment
Agency.

d. Recommend proposed amendments to the City of Elko Redevelopment Plan.
e. Advise the RDA on implementation of the RDA Master Plan and any

implementation documents.
f. Monitor and evaluate progress in carrying out the vision for the purpose of

advising the RDA.
g. To the extent delegated by the RDA, oversee and coordinate among other

advisory bodies, estimate the overall needs for resources to accomplish the
various projects, and provide direction in the allocation of resources among these
projects.



Page 3 of 4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 14, 2017

h. Sort among competing priorities and conflicting activities within the scope of
RAC’s area of responsibility.

i. Communicate the information regarding implementation of the Redevelopment
Plan and implementation documents to the community, stakeholders, and
interested organizations.

j. Give recognition to people and groups as they accomplish action items and
project implementation activities.

k. As requested by the RDA, help with the identification, and recruitment, of Project
Champions, as that term is defined in the Redevelopment Plan or associated
implementation documents.

Pursuant to NRS Chapter 279, the RDA is responsible for overseeing, managing, and coordinating
redevelopment and revitalization projects within the redevelopment area pursuant to the Redevelopment
Plan.  The RDA will, in its discretion and within the scope of its statutory authority (1) be the authority for
implementation of the RDA Plan, (2) approve project budgets, (3) resolve conflicting priorities, (4) secure
funding for specific projects,  and (5) resolve project challenges presented by the City of Elko’s regulatory
structure. These duties and all other duties given to the RDA by statute may not be delegated to the
RAC.

ARTICLE V MEETINGS, RECORDS, QUORUMS, AND VOTING

Section 1 The RAC shall meet quarterly or as needed as determined by the Chairperson of the
RAC.

Section 2 Special meetings of the RAC may be called as directed by:

a. By the Chairperson of the RAC;
b. By a majority vote of a quorum at a meeting of the RAC;
c. By request of a majority of the members of the RAC;
d. By the RDA; or
d. By the City Planner or his/her designee.

Section 3 All meetings shall be properly noticed, posted and conducted according to the Open
Meeting Law, NRS Chapter 241.

Section 4 Three (3) members of the RAC shall constitute a quorum. No action may be taken
without at least a quorum. The quorum shall not be reduced by abstentions or recusals.
A majority vote of the members of the RAC who are in attendance and able to vote shall
be necessary for official action.

Section 5 The RAC shall comply with these Bylaws for all business of the RAC.

Section 6 The RAC shall keep a written record of all meetings.

Section 7 Only such business specified in the published agenda for the meeting shall be transacted
at a meeting of the RAC.

ARTICLE VI FILING WITH THE CITY CLERK

Section 1 The executed original of these Bylaws must be filed with the City Clerk within ten (10)
days of adoption by the RDA.

Section 2 Originals of the agenda, agenda backup items, and certificate of posting are to be filed
with the office of the City Clerk at the time of the posting of the agenda.



Page 4 of 4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 14, 2017

Section 3 The executed original of the meeting minutes is to be filed with the office of the Elko City
Clerk within ten (10) calendar days of approval.

ARTICLE VII ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT

Section 1 These Bylaws shall become effective upon adoption by the RDA.

Section 2 An amendment to these Bylaws may be introduced and initiated by a majority vote of
either the RAC or the RDA. The proposed amendment shall be acted upon at the next
regular meeting of the RDA.

Section 3 The RAC is responsible for ensuring compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Pursuant
to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 241, the RAC must prepare, publish and follow an
agenda.  Any action items must be submitted to the City Planner or his/her designee at
least ten (10) calendar days prior to the official meeting date.  Appropriate back up
material must be submitted with the item.

Section 4 Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, the RDA may, in its discretion,
dissolve and terminate the RAC, or restrict or amend these Bylaws and the duties and
responsibilities of the RAC to the extent permitted by the Redevelopment Plan and the
Nevada Revised Statutes.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:

Its:

DATED: , 2016.

ATTEST:



Election Procedures
1. Current Chairman asks for nominations for the Chairman Position. A vote

will be taken after all nominations are done. Those that decline nomination
will not be considered.

2. Chairman asks for votes. If two or more people are nominated the votes are
taken in order of nomination.

a. Remember to only vote aye for ONE person per position. It would
also be helpful for everyone to hold their hand up and pause so the
votes can be recorded.

Example: If Jane Doe is nominated and then John Doe is nominated,
Chairman would ask for those in favor of Jane Doe for Chair say aye
… nay…  If there was a majority vote for Jane Doe then the election
process for Chairman is done.

If a majority did not vote for Jane Doe then the Current Chairman
would continue for John Doe.

3. Current Chairman moves on to nominations for the other positions (Vice-
Chairman & Secretary).

a. A person can be nominated for more than one position, but can’t
hold more than one position.

*The Current Chairman will conduct the entire meeting, and then the New Chairman will take
over at the next meeting.

* A motion does NOT need to be made, only a nomination.




















































